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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Welcome,

          3  everyone to today's Hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Public Safety, which will explore the

          5  current function, training and qualifications of our

          6  auxiliary police officers, as well as measures taken

          7  by the Police Department to ensure the maximum

          8  safety of this force.

          9                 This Hearing obviously follows the

         10  tragic shooting deaths of Auxiliary Officers

         11  Yevgeniy Marshalik and Nicholas Pekearo, who were

         12  just 19 and 28 years old.

         13                 Much has been made about the low pay

         14  of our NYPD officers and for good reason, but the

         15  starting salary of an auxiliary police officer is

         16  even lower.  In fact, it's zero.  These officers

         17  take it upon themselves to help police our streets

         18  and are rewarded with nothing other than the

         19  satisfaction of public service.  Granted, they are

         20  not charged with the responsibility of police

         21  officers, but they work hard patrolling our streets

         22  in vehicles, bicycles and on foot providing

         23  information that makes it easier for the NYPD to

         24  fight criminals.  We may not give them a paycheck,

         25  but at the very least, these volunteers deserve our
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          2  respect and the thoughtful consideration of this

          3  Hearing to help them with their duties.  As we've

          4  seen recently, unfortunately, these young men and

          5  women, they volunteer their time, but too often they

          6  also volunteer their lives.

          7                 Auxiliary Officers Marshalik and

          8  Pekearo were shot and killed after being confused

          9  most likely for NYPD officers. They wear nearly

         10  identical uniforms and are subject to the same

         11  violent outbursts that many criminals have against

         12  the organization that is responsible for taking them

         13  off the streets and protecting us.  In other words,

         14  cops are attacked merely for being cops, and during

         15  a bloody rampage, these criminals do not bother to

         16  differentiate between shades of blue.

         17                 Just last February, Officer Chou

         18  (phonetic) was savagely beaten with a baseball bat

         19  while patrolling in Jackson Heights.  The assailant,

         20  Danny Fernandez, wanted a gun and wanted to get one

         21  from a police officer because of his hatred for the

         22  police.  Commissioner Kelly has already seen fit to

         23  equip the auxiliary police officers with the same

         24  protective vests worn by regular officers, and we

         25  here in the Public Safety Committee commend that
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          2  decision because anyone who wears a police uniform,

          3  a metaphorical bull's eye for criminals, should have

          4  protection underneath it.

          5                 Even with the largest police force in

          6  the world, the NYPD is stretched thin, as we say all

          7  too often here in the Public Safety Committee.  Not

          8  only has our City's population expanded, but since

          9  911, the NYPD must monitor threats not only on its

         10  own streets, but those brewing in the back alleys of

         11  Baghdad and Kabul. With this constant danger over

         12  our heads, we need every pair of eyes and ears to

         13  watch for suspicious activity.

         14                 Our volunteers do this with little

         15  notice or recognition.  However, when a tragic event

         16  such as the recent shooting occurs, we're reminded

         17  of the diligence and bravery that these men and

         18  women put forth on a daily basis to maintain the

         19  quality of life and safety in our great City.  We're

         20  also reminded that despite all the good intentions

         21  to keep auxiliary officers away from life

         22  threatening activity, their responsibilities and the

         23  likeness to regular officers, puts them at risk.  As

         24  such, we need to do everything possible to ensure

         25  that they're able to do their jobs safety.
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          2                 Before I begin the testimony today,

          3  I'd like to turn the floor over to Council Member

          4  Lou Fidler, who's here with us today, but before I

          5  get to him, I'd like to introduce some of my

          6  colleagues.  We have Council Member Joe Addabbo,

          7  Council Member Dan Garodnick, Council Member Vincent

          8  Gentile, and our minority leader, James Oddo on the

          9  right, it's fitting.  But, again, Lou Fidler has had

         10  a bill in for some time now, well before this

         11  incident, which I fully support, which would provide

         12  death benefits, make them mandatory for auxiliary

         13  officers who lose their life in the line of duty.

         14  So Councilman Fidler?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman, and thank you very much for scheduling

         17  this Hearing.  Sometimes I guess it takes a tragedy

         18  to bring a piece of legislation to the fore.  I know

         19  that your support for this has been consistent over

         20  the years, and I appreciate it.

         21                 I sometimes wonder why anyone would

         22  be an auxiliary cop.  You walk out on the street,

         23  you wear the uniform of a New York City police

         24  officer, which is, in effect, putting a target on

         25  your back, and we don't give you any of the
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          2  instrumentalities by which to defend yourself from

          3  being a target.  So having an occasional

          4  appreciation night at the Precinct, barely says what

          5  we need to say to the people who do this for us in

          6  the City, volunteer in this critical way and

          7  important way.

          8                 A number of years ago, I believe it

          9  was in the 69 Precinct.  I'm sure Tony Cristo

         10  (phonetic) will correct me if I'm wrong, we lost a

         11  member of the auxiliary force in the line of duty,

         12  and you had to take up a collection to pay for the

         13  funeral.  That indignity just seems so unbefitting

         14  the role that the auxiliary police officers play in

         15  the City, and so when the Mayor voluntarily

         16  exercised his right to confer these benefits after

         17  the recent tragedy, it became clear that this should

         18  be something that is mandatory.

         19                 I'm told by counsel that there may be

         20  some issues as to whether or not we have the legal

         21  power to enact Intro 335A and make this mandatory,

         22  that it might require a Charter change, so I want

         23  those of you who are here in support of my bill to

         24  be aware of that, and be aware of the fact that we

         25  are, in fact, looking in to see whether or not we
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          2  can, but if we can, I don't think there's any

          3  question that we should.  It is a very, very minimal

          4  gesture that ought to be undertaken by this City on

          5  behalf of people who have been giving of themselves

          6  in so many ways for so long a time.

          7                 In closing, I want to thank Tony

          8  Cristo for having brought this issue to my attention

          9  about five or six years ago.  It was at his request

         10  that I introduce this legislation then, and I hope

         11  he'll have an opportunity to come a bill signing at

         12  some time in the future.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 Oh, and I also want to apologize.  As

         14  happens sometimes in the Council, we have multiple

         15  hearings at the same time.  I am chairing the Youth

         16  Services Committee next door, and I moved that

         17  hearing from 10 to 10:30 so that I could be here for

         18  at least part of this Hearing, but I do apologize.

         19  When I leave, it's not going to be for any other

         20  reason other than the fact that I need to chair that

         21  hearing.  Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         23  Council Member Fidler.  Thank you also for your

         24  leadership on this important issue.  We're joined

         25  today by Chief Nicholas Estavillo, and we welcome
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          2  you here, and we thank you for the work you do every

          3  day, and I'd like you to introduce who the panel

          4  you're here with, and the floor is yours.

          5                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Good morning, Mr.

          6  Chairman.  I'm Nicholas Estavillo, Chief of Patrol

          7  for the New York City Police Department, and I'm

          8  joined today by Inspector Robert Lucena to my left

          9  of the NYPD Personnel Bureau and Deputy Inspector

         10  Angelo Maroulis, Commanding Officer of the our

         11  Auxiliary Police Section. Sue Petito, who is our

         12  liaison to the Council, as well, sits with us.

         13                 At this time I'd also like to

         14  recognize and thank the uniforms that you see

         15  sitting in the front row represent not only our

         16  auxiliary police program, these auxiliary police

         17  chiefs combined can put hundreds years of experience

         18  to the Police Department and to the City of New York

         19  as volunteers, auxiliary police officers, so

         20  certainly I'd like to thank the auxiliary chiefs for

         21  joining us today.

         22                 Last month, as mentioned, the lives

         23  of two brave young auxiliary police officers were

         24  taken in a murderous rampage. Auxiliary Police

         25  Officers Nicholas Pekearo and Eugene Marshalik died
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          2  heroically, and their efforts probably prevented

          3  further death and injury from occurring.  This

          4  terrible event has sparked intense public interest

          5  in the NYPD's Auxiliary Police Program.  On behalf

          6  of Police Commissioner Raymond Kelly, we are here

          7  today to discuss the mission and functions of the

          8  NYPD Auxiliary Police Program.

          9                 The program is an invaluable vehicle

         10  for involving the community and promoting public

         11  safety through personal participation.  The mission

         12  of the program is threefold:  To deter crime by

         13  performing uniformed patrol, to improve community

         14  relations and to augment the police force in the

         15  event of an emergency or a natural disaster.

         16  Auxiliary police programs were initiated during the

         17  Cold War when federal and state law established

         18  civil defense programs.  Cities were required to

         19  recruit, train and equip volunteers to be civil

         20  defense wardens who would act as an adjunct to

         21  regular police departments in the event of civil

         22  defense emergency.

         23                 In 1967, the responsibility for the

         24  New York City Auxiliary Police Program was given to

         25  the NYPD by Executive Order. Auxiliary police
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          2  officers are not peace officers and do not have

          3  arrest powers beyond those of other civilians.

          4  However, they may be given peace officer status

          5  pursuant to the Criminal Procedure Law during the

          6  period of imminent or actual attack or during

          7  official drills in preparation for disasters.  If

          8  so, they would most likely be called upon to direct

          9  and control traffic.

         10                 Our program is the largest in the

         11  country with over 4,500 dedicated men and women who

         12  perform volunteer services for their communities

         13  working hand in hand with police officers in every

         14  patrol precinct, housing police service area and

         15  transit district in the City.  They represent the

         16  cross section of the ethnic and racial composition

         17  of the City coming from all walks of life and

         18  economic circumstances.  They play an integral part

         19  in the Department's crime fighting and quality of

         20  life strategies.

         21                 Their primary role is to be the "eyes

         22  and ears" for the Police Department, patrolling in

         23  pairs, and they are trained to observe and report

         24  conditions requiring the service of regular police

         25  officers.  Whenever possible, they assist in non-
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          2  hazardous and non- enforcement duties.  They add a

          3  welcome presence at events like community fairs,

          4  block parties, at parks and playgrounds, during

          5  parades, in malls and shopping areas during periods

          6  of high activity, at graffiti- prone locations, and

          7  at schools and houses of worship.  They often assist

          8  in general administrative tasks, such as

          9  receptionists, language interpretation, and

         10  telephone duty, and assist the crime prevention and

         11  community affairs officers in clerical tasks.

         12                 Auxiliary police also play a vital

         13  role in crime prevention programs such as the

         14  vehicle VIN etching, the bicycle registration

         15  program, Combat Auto Theft, or the CAT program.

         16  They routinely distribute community awareness

         17  literature covering general crime prevention,

         18  counter- terrorism, transit safety and gun stoppers

         19  programs.

         20                 In housing developments auxiliary

         21  police attend Tenant Association and Youth meetings

         22  to coordinate perimeter and lobby patrols and

         23  address specific concerns of residents in public

         24  housing.  In transit facilities, auxiliary police

         25  patrol token booth areas, stairs, mezzanines, and
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          2  street areas in the immediate vicinity of subway

          3  stations.

          4                 The Auxiliary Police Section is

          5  organized in a manner similar to the NYPD in both

          6  rank and structure.  Auxiliary police officers are

          7  promoted up through the ranks and can attain the

          8  highest rank of Auxiliary Deputy Chief, as

          9  represented here today.  Their assignments are

         10  generally organized according to precincts and

         11  boroughs like the NYPD's, and the Auxiliary Deputy

         12  Chief is the functional equivalent of a Borough

         13  Commander. Although service is completely voluntary,

         14  each active auxiliary police officer is expected to

         15  perform a minimum of 126 hours of service per year.

         16  The minimum number of hours expected increases with

         17  each rank.  Collectively, Auxiliary Police

         18  contribute approximately one million hours of

         19  service each year.

         20                 Recruitment is an especially

         21  important function of the Auxiliary Police Section

         22  since approximately 15 to 20 percent of the

         23  Auxiliary Police membership leaves each year for a

         24  variety of reasons.  It is therefore especially

         25  important that recruitment drives be conducted on a
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          2  regular basis, not only to maintain the current

          3  level of service, but it is hoped to expand the

          4  program.

          5                 In addition to encouraging friends

          6  and relatives to volunteer, our Auxiliary Police

          7  officers set up booths and tables at public events

          8  like street fairs, parades and block parties. They

          9  visit sites such as subway stations, malls and

         10  schools handing out application forms and answering

         11  questions about the program. We also advertise on

         12  radio and in local newspapers and use posters and

         13  brochures to broaden community awareness of the

         14  program.

         15                 In order to be appointed as Auxiliary

         16  Police Officers, applicants must live or work in New

         17  York City, must be between 17 and 60 years of age

         18  and in good health, must be able to read and write

         19  English, must never have been convicted of a felony

         20  or have a previous arrest record which would prevent

         21  acceptance, must be a citizen or permanent resident

         22  or have a valid visa and must be of good character.

         23  Applicants over 60 may be accepted for

         24  administrative duties.

         25                 Anyone interested in joining can
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          2  visit any police precinct, police service area or

          3  transit district, can call 311 or 212- AUX- 1000, or

          4  can visit our website at www.nyc.gov/nypd.

          5                 All Auxiliary Police recruits must

          6  attend a basic training course, which is certified

          7  by the New York State Municipal Police Training

          8  Council.  Training is conducted at the local

          9  precinct over a 16- week period for a total of 54

         10  hours.  The course includes topics such as police

         11  science, behavioral science, baton and self defense

         12  training, police procedures, penal and criminal

         13  procedure law, terrorism awareness, crowd and

         14  traffic control, first aid, radio communication and

         15  equal employment opportunity issues.

         16                 While the recruits are being trained,

         17  a background investigation is conducted.  If the

         18  applicant successfully completes the training course

         19  and is found to qualify, they are assigned to a

         20  local police precinct, police service area or

         21  transit district.  They receive an NYPD

         22  identification card and an auxiliary shield.

         23                 Most Auxiliary Police Officers

         24  perform their service in the neighborhood where they

         25  live, and most volunteer in the evenings after work
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          2  or school.  They receive periodic in- service

          3  training to keep them informed of new procedures and

          4  to reinforce material which they have already

          5  learned.  They also receive management training when

          6  being considered for promotion to Auxiliary

          7  Sergeant, as well as motor vehicle and bicycle

          8  training.

          9                 There are also opportunities for

         10  specialized duties within the Auxiliary Police

         11  Program accompanied by the appropriate training.

         12  Most boroughs have an Auxiliary Patrol Support Unit

         13  assisting the Emergency Service Unit at details and

         14  emergencies. They have special equipment such as

         15  generators with lights, water pumps for flooding

         16  conditions, chain saws to remove felled trees and

         17  other such tools.  Some units maintain automated

         18  external defibrillators for use in cardiac

         19  emergencies.

         20                 The Auxiliary Police Support Units

         21  are not first responders and do not replicate the

         22  work of the Emergency Service Unit, but rather they

         23  act in a support capacity as directed by the

         24  Precinct Command, Borough Command or Commanding

         25  Officer of the Auxiliary Forces Section.  They are
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          2  generally equipped with 12 passenger vans, which

          3  have been adapted to carry their equipment.        Many

          4  auxiliary commands also have bicycle patrols, and

          5  candidates must pass the Department's bicycle

          6  training course at Floyd Bennett Field in order to

          7  qualify.  Auxiliary police officers are assigned to

          8  work with the Harbor Unit and Highway Districts.

          9  Some also support the Department's efforts to

         10  address underage sales of alcohol, again after

         11  receiving the appropriate training.  They may even

         12  play the in the Auxiliary Police Headquarters Band.

         13                 All auxiliary police officers are

         14  equipped with radios, batons and memo books on

         15  patrol.  Except for Transit District commands,

         16  auxiliary units have at least one vehicle assigned.

         17                 Auxiliary police officers receive an

         18  initial voucher for $188 redeemable at the Police

         19  Department's Equipment Section to assist in

         20  purchasing their uniforms.  Thereafter, the members

         21  in good standing receive allowances of $250 per year

         22  toward uniform maintenance, which can be

         23  supplemented by the Department if needs arise.

         24                 The citywide responsibility for the

         25  Auxiliary Police Program rests with Deputy Inspector
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          2  Maroulis, who commands the Auxiliary Police Section

          3  and has served in this capacity for 11 years.

          4  However, every Auxiliary Police Unit also has

          5  assigned a police officer serving as an auxiliary

          6  coordinator, whose role is to manage the program in

          7  that command on behalf of the local commanding

          8  officer.  Together they ensure that appropriate

          9  personnel and training records are maintained for

         10  each auxiliary police officer.  They also make sure

         11  that auxiliary officers who leave the program return

         12  their shields and I.D. Cards to the Department.

         13                 The operation of the auxiliary police

         14  program in many ways mirrors the personnel

         15  management of the Department in general.  Auxiliary

         16  police officers are recognized for commendable

         17  service on duty, receive longevity and service

         18  awards, are evaluated, including for promotion and

         19  transfer, are on probation for their first year of

         20  service, are subject to disciplinary process for

         21  misconduct, and may be mobilized in an emergency.

         22                 Auxiliary police officers are not

         23  paid a salary or stipend by the City other than

         24  their uniform allowance.  However, they are covered

         25  by the Workman's Compensation Law if they are
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          2  injured or killed in the line of duty pursuant to

          3  New York City Administrative Code Section 14- 147.

          4                 In addition, as you may recall, Mayor

          5  Bloomberg granted a special award under

          6  Administrative Code Section 3- 405 for the heroic

          7  acts of Auxiliary Officers Pekearo and Marshalik,

          8  resulting in the payment of $66,000 to each of their

          9  families.  We are also in the process of assisting

         10  their families in applying for federal benefits

         11  under the Public Safety Officers' Benefits Act. The

         12  law provides for payment of approximately $295,000

         13  to eligible survivors of public safety officers who

         14  perish in the line of duty.

         15                 The murders of Auxiliary Officers of

         16  Pekearo and Marshalik have been a terrible blow to

         17  the Department and the City as a whole, and

         18  especially to the brave men and women who serve as

         19  auxiliary police officers.  Because of the

         20  circumstances of this tragedy, Commissioner Kelly

         21  established an Auxiliary Police Review Committee to

         22  look closely at the entire program and make

         23  recommendations regarding every aspect, recruitment,

         24  selection, training, equipment, uniforms, duties and

         25  responsibilities, deployment and supervision.
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          2                 I chair the Committee, which includes

          3  a Deputy Commissioners of Training and Strategic

          4  Initiatives, the Chiefs of Personnel, Housing and

          5  Community Affairs Bureaus, the Borough Commanders of

          6  Manhattan North and Brooklyn South, Deputy Inspector

          7  Maroulis and the President of the Auxiliary Police

          8  Benevolent Association.

          9                 The Committee is meeting regularly as

         10  a fully body and also in subcommittees, and we are

         11  conducting an in- depth review and analysis of the

         12  entire program.  We expect to provide a set of

         13  recommendations to Commissioner Kelly in June.

         14                 However, one important aspect of our

         15  review has already been resolved regarding bullet

         16  resistant vests.  As Mayor Bloomberg and

         17  Commissioner Kelly have announced, we will now be

         18  providing all auxiliary police officers with the

         19  same state- of- the art vest provided to police

         20  officers.  Up to now, auxiliary police have had

         21  their option of purchasing their own vests, and they

         22  have received donations of vests from police

         23  officers who retire, and have at times had access to

         24  reserve vests maintained by their commands.

         25  Instead, auxiliary police officers will be measured
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          2  for Level 3A protective vests with enhanced neck and

          3  side coverage and overlapping side panels to allow

          4  for changes in body shape.  This initiative will

          5  cost about $3.3 million with an annual cost of about

          6  $617,000 going forward.  But it should be remembered

          7  that wearing a bullet resistant vest does not

          8  guarantee absolute safety, and, as you may know,

          9  Auxiliary Officer Pekearo was wearing such a vest

         10  when he was killed.

         11                 In the aftermath of the deaths of

         12  Auxiliary Police Officers Pekearo and Marshalik,

         13  many suggestions have been made regarding auxiliary

         14  police.  They range from changing the uniform, to

         15  augmenting their equipment and training, to giving

         16  them peace officer status.  We on the Committee are

         17  taking a clean page approach and looking at every

         18  one of those issues, among many others.  We need to

         19  balance the interest in auxiliary police being a

         20  visible crime prevention presence, against the even

         21  more important interest in having them be as safe as

         22  possible as they perform their duties.

         23                 To that end, we will be seeking state

         24  legislation which increases the criminal penalties

         25  for committing assaults against auxiliary police
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          2  officers.  We have for several years sought this

          3  additional protection for our traffic enforcement

          4  agents and our school safety agents.  The deaths of

          5  Auxiliary Police Officers Pekearo and Marshalik have

          6  demonstrated in the starkest terms how the law

          7  should be changed to protect auxiliary police

          8  officers in similar fashion.  We welcome your

          9  support for this initiative and will keep you

         10  informed about its progress.

         11                 Thank you for inviting us to discuss

         12  the Auxiliary Police Program.  This program offers a

         13  unique opportunity for dedicated volunteer service

         14  to the City and a partnership between the community

         15  and its police.  We are extremely proud of the

         16  program and of the men and women who participate in

         17  it.  We would like to thank them for giving so

         18  generously of their time and energy so that their

         19  fellow New Yorkers can be safer.  Thank you, and we

         20  will be pleased to answer any questions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you for

         22  your comprehensive testimony, which answers many of

         23  our questions, but of course not all of them.

         24                 Before I get to my questions, I'd

         25  like to introduce Council Member David Weprin, who's
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          2  been in the forefront of the fight to ensure that

          3  our auxiliary officers are as protected as possible.

          4    He's done a lot of work in this regard, and I've

          5  been happy to help him to the extent I can, and I'd

          6  like to turn the floor over to him for some brief

          7  opening remarks.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman and the rest of the Committee for

         10  granting me this opportunity to speak at this

         11  morning's oversight hearing.  At the Chairman's

         12  direction, I will try to be as brief as possible.

         13                 On March 14th our City lost two of

         14  its bravest sons, as was testified to, Nicholas

         15  Pekearo and Eugene Marshalik, both auxiliary police

         16  officers.  Their death brought to life the many

         17  deficiencies in the auxiliary program.  It is my

         18  hope that through the action of this City Council

         19  under Chair Vallone's leadership, we can develop a

         20  comprehensive plan which will provide the officers

         21  with greater protection.

         22                 Auxiliary officers are volunteers.

         23  Every day they put their lives on the line in order

         24  to protect us, yet they're offered little in return

         25  that will ensure their protection.  From March 22nd
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          2  through March 27th of this year I submitted five LS

          3  requests, which taken together, comprise the

          4  Auxiliary Officers Assistant Plan, a 10- point plan,

          5  which offers both requests for equipment and

          6  legislative items that will provide the officers

          7  with far superior protection from injury while they

          8  serve our City.

          9                 The plan calls for the New York City

         10  Police Department to provide auxiliary police

         11  officers with one bullet proof vest, two, mace,

         12  three, expandable nightsticks, four, protective

         13  masks, five, automatic external defibrillators for

         14  the special rescue units.  I am proud to report that

         15  since this time of the initial request, Mayor

         16  Bloomberg and Police Commissioner Ray Kelly, as was

         17  testified by the Chief, have announced that the NYPD

         18  will be providing its auxiliary officers with bullet

         19  proof vests Level 3A as part of a $3.3 million

         20  budget item, and I fully support that.

         21                 Bullet proof vests will substantially

         22  reduce the risk of injury for auxiliaries, but there

         23  are many other protective items that will also play

         24  a key role in making auxiliary officers safer, and

         25  I'm very happy to hear from the Chief that he's open
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          2  to suggestions, and I will make sure that you get

          3  copies of my entire plan.

          4                 In addition to the pieces of

          5  protective gear that I have detailed, the LS

          6  requests that I submitted call for special

          7  legislation which would accomplish five goals.  One,

          8  increase penalties for attacking or injuring

          9  auxiliary officers, two, provide appropriate

         10  benefits for disabled auxiliary officers and their

         11  families, three, mandated regular reporting by the

         12  NYPD to the City Council on the auxiliary program,

         13  four, improved and increased training and self

         14  defense classes for auxiliaries to be administered

         15  by police academy trainers, and five, full

         16  restoration of the auxiliary emergency service

         17  units.

         18                 Increasing the penalties for

         19  attacking or injuring auxiliaries is long overdue.

         20  Assault against auxiliaries should carry with it the

         21  same penalty as an assault against a member of the

         22  NYPD or any other peace officer.  This can be

         23  accomplished by granting auxiliary officers the

         24  status of peace officer while on duty.  This

         25  distinction carries with it much stiffer penalties

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  and, as a result, will lead to a greater deterrent

          3  for potential crimes against auxiliary officers.

          4                 Appropriate benefits for disabled

          5  auxiliary officers and their families is another

          6  measure called for by the legislation I have

          7  proposed.  As a volunteer extension of the NYPD,

          8  auxiliary and their families should be afforded the

          9  same consideration as NYPD officers.  Injuries

         10  sustained while on duty would cause an auxiliary to

         11  be unable to work their regular job, or their family

         12  could be left without a provider if a fatal injury

         13  is sustained.

         14                 I would like to also express my

         15  strong support for Intro 335 sponsored by Councilman

         16  Lou Fidler, which calls for the extension of funeral

         17  benefits for auxiliary officers.  Mandated, regular

         18  reporting by the NYPD to the City Council will

         19  require the NYPD to report to the Council and give

         20  statistics covering the number of auxiliaries,

         21  equipment, vehicles, training and hours and will

         22  better enable us to make sure their needs are met.

         23                 Improved and increased training in

         24  self defense classes administered by Police Academy

         25  instructors is another service I have requested be
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          2  provided.  If auxiliaries are left to face

          3  potentially dangerous scenarios, there is no one

          4  better equipped to train them than the Police

          5  Academy instructors.  Full restoration of the

          6  auxiliary emergency service unit name will enable

          7  auxiliaries to provide service as the auxiliary arm

          8  of the NYPD emergency services unit as originally

          9  mandated upon its creation.

         10                 This legislation which I have

         11  outlined in addition to the bills that have already

         12  been proposed, will offer them a wide array of

         13  support and security, as they continue to serve our

         14  City proudly.  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you,

         16  Council Member Weprin.  I see in forming your staff

         17  that you could have the courtesy for a two minute

         18  opening, which is next to useless as today, but

         19  okay.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  I took a page

         21  out.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Took a page

         23  out, thank the Lord.

         24                 I'm just going to go through your

         25  testimony.  I'm going to ask you a few brief
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          2  questions before I turn it over to some of my

          3  colleagues.  First of all, Council Member Dilan was

          4  just here 10 seconds ago.  There he is, okay.  I

          5  wanted to introduce him, so I'll ask some brief

          6  questions from your testimony, and then turn it over

          7  to right now it's Addabbo and then Gentile.

          8                 On page one you mention that

          9  auxiliaries may be given peace officer status during

         10  official drills in preparation for disasters and

         11  during a period of imminent or actual attack. How

         12  often has that happened, number one?  And, number

         13  two, I know that's something that you're

         14  considering, giving them peace officer status.  You

         15  mentioned that as something that we support here at

         16  least.  I know Council Member Weprin does, and I do.

         17    What is your position on peace officer status for

         18  auxiliaries?

         19                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Number one, Council

         20  Member Weprin, thank you very much for your interest

         21  because all of the points that you hit on certainly

         22  are those that we will be delving into with the

         23  Review Committee.

         24                 In terms of the peace officer status,

         25  there are a lot of legal issues that are attached to
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          2  the peace officer status. It certainly is part of

          3  our review by our committee, and recommendations

          4  will be forthcoming.

          5                 In answer to your first question, I

          6  don't recall that police officers have ever been

          7  elevated to peace officer status for any emergency,

          8  including the World Trade Center attacks. They

          9  assist, but never has it reached a level where they

         10  have been activated for peace officer status.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How would that

         12  actually take place?

         13                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  It would probably

         14  have to be such a dramatic event affecting the City

         15  and perhaps for a long period of time where the New

         16  York City Police Department would require additional

         17  support, in effect, activation of auxiliary police.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, I'm

         19  assuming if 9- 11 didn't meet that criteria, then

         20  that's something that's never going to happen

         21  hopefully in our -- not that hopefully they don't be

         22  elevated, but hopefully nothing ever worse happens

         23  to our City.  If you were to elevate them, what

         24  would the procedure be?  Under the procedure law,

         25  how does that happen?
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          2                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  It would be a

          3  direction from the Mayor's Office, an Executive

          4  Order, that simply would be designated.  Certainly,

          5  a certain amount of training would attach to that,

          6  and procedures set in place to activate them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now, assaulting

          8  a peace officer is a C felony, if I remember

          9  correctly.  You are, on page four, calling for the

         10  state to increase criminal penalties, welcome to our

         11  world, good luck, but we support that completely,

         12  increasing criminal penalties.  Now, making them a

         13  peace officer would make it a C felony, so if you

         14  don't see fit after the Committee comes back with a

         15  recommendation to make them peace officers, what

         16  type of legislation are you requesting?

         17                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  A legislature that

         18  would provide for a higher penalty, specifically to

         19  the auxiliary police.  As mentioned in my testimony,

         20  we have been at this with traffic agents and school

         21  safety officers for several years.  Sue Petito is

         22  prepared to discuss in more detail, if necessary,

         23  but the fact is that we have gone as far as the

         24  state Senate.  We have had issues with the State

         25  Assembly, and so that we will continue with that,
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          2  yes.  We will continue with that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Who hasn't had

          4  issues with the State Assembly?

          5                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Yes.  So you

          6  understand our dilemma, but what we would propose,

          7  and our Committee certainly will be looking at to

          8  include auxiliary police officers at the same level

          9  of school safety and traffic agents.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Assistant

         11  Commissioner Petito, actually, I would like to have

         12  some more background on, not just auxiliary

         13  officers, but the entire situation regarding traffic

         14  agents and school safety officers.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Well,

         16  what we've attempted to do over the last couple of

         17  years, I think since 2002, was to amend the Penal

         18  Law Assault second degree to include specifically if

         19  you cause physical injury to a traffic enforcement

         20  agent or school safety agent, that that assault

         21  charge would be upgraded to the second degree level

         22  even if you all you cause is physical injury, and we

         23  would make the same change for second degree to

         24  first degree assault.  In other words, we would

         25  upgrade it one level.  If you cause physical injury

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  rather than serious physical injury, you would still

          3  be charged with assault first degree.  So our

          4  proposal has embraced up to now, traffic enforcement

          5  agents and school safety agents.  We are planning to

          6  add auxiliary police officers to that category where

          7  the assault would be upgraded by one felony level.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  What about

          9  peace officers?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  We do

         11  not propose to change their peace officer status in

         12  our legislation.  It wouldn't be necessary.  It

         13  would be a functional distinction rather than based

         14  on any peace officer status.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Peace officer,

         16  as I said, it's already a C felony.  Now this is

         17  maybe inside a baseball, but the actual felony is an

         18  assault with the intent to prevent them from

         19  performing their duties, which never made much sense

         20  to me.  If you just assaulted somebody, just because

         21  you don't like the blue uniform, your prosecutor

         22  would have to prove you assaulted them with an

         23  intent to prevent them from performing their duties.

         24    Does your legislation address that at all?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Well,
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          2  it becomes very complicated because our legislation

          3  addressing traffic enforcement agents and school

          4  safety agents was part of legislation that would

          5  have also upgraded for police officers that kind of

          6  charge if you caused the death.  We've called this

          7  bill in the past the Guidice Bill.  It was named

          8  after Officer Vincent Guidice, and this is the

          9  situation that we were trying to address where if

         10  you are trying to escape from a police officer, for

         11  example, and in the course of that attempt to

         12  escape, you're not necessarily intending to injure

         13  the police officer.  You simply want to get away

         14  from him, and you cause his death.  We think that

         15  that should be a B felony, and so there are two

         16  different ways.  It could be intentional assault,

         17  and it can also be trying to prevent the officer

         18  from performing their lawful duty.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, thank

         20  you.  Again, if it's not in already, there will be a

         21  reso. Soon supporting your efforts because we

         22  understand the uphill battle you face in the

         23  Assembly.  We've faced it many times before with

         24  drunk driving penalties and sex offender penalties

         25  that we've called for to be raised here so often,
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          2  and rarely does it happen.  If it happens, it's no

          3  where near where we're calling for, which most

          4  likely will be the case with you, but we will see.

          5                 On the next page, page two, you go

          6  through some of the time that is put in by auxiliary

          7  officers, and I know the front row here combined has

          8  well over 100 years' experience.  I know that some

          9  of them individually have 35 years, I believe, of

         10  volunteering with the Auxiliary Police Department.

         11  That's just an amazing thing.

         12                 On page three you mention the

         13  equipment that auxiliary police officers are

         14  equipped with, and then you talk about a voucher

         15  that they use, $188 originally and then $250 per

         16  year.  Now what is actually provided to them, and

         17  what are they using their voucher to purchase?

         18                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  The $188 voucher

         19  was developed years ago as an initial investment in

         20  the uniform.  The uniform is basically similar to

         21  ours, as you know, with the exception of the patch,

         22  has the auxiliary title over the top, so those are

         23  the initial costs of the uniform.  This, as most of

         24  what we will discuss here today, will be reviewed

         25  and revisited by the Review Committee, and we hope
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          2  to see some improvement, certainly significant

          3  improvement in this particular area.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Yes, so do we.

          5  Let me start with the uniform then.  How much does

          6  an actual uniform cost that they have to pay for

          7  right now?

          8                 MR. MAROULIS:  Mr. Chairman, the

          9  uniform that the auxiliaries get, they get a

         10  voucher, and that uniform provides them with a full,

         11  complete uniform to go out on patrol.  They get a

         12  long sleeved shirt, they get a jacket, they get

         13  pants, they get a tie, they get a baton, so $188 is

         14  the cost to outfit an auxiliary to get him or her on

         15  patrol for that day.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Great, so

         17  they're not spending any money on their uniform?

         18                 MR. MAROULIS:  They could spend more

         19  though for other -- there are other optional items,

         20  sweaters and short sleeved shirts, which would have

         21  to be added to that too, but they can be outfitted

         22  with that voucher to get them out on patrol.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, now what

         24  about, you said, they were equipped with radios,

         25  batons, memo books.  What about the other equipment
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          2  that they carry?  Are they provided with that, or do

          3  they pay for that?

          4                 MR. MAROULIS:  Well, like if they go

          5  on bicycle patrols, they would have to buy a bicycle

          6  uniform, and that would cost them approximately

          7  $330, the pants, the jacket, and also they have

          8  sweaters that they can purchase.  There are other

          9  items, optional items, but as far as patrol goes,

         10  and a short sleeved shirt they would have to

         11  purchase also.  Hand cuffs they would have to

         12  purchase.  That's another item they would have to

         13  purchase too.            But it depends on the unit.

         14    If they're doing routine patrol, they're given the

         15  full uniform, and the $250 is given to them annually

         16  to maintain the uniform and buy other items, and, of

         17  course, a summer blouse, like, as you see the chiefs

         18  here, ourselves here, we're wearing summer blouses.

         19  That's an expensive item.  That's well over $200.

         20  That is out- of- pocket expenses too.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  What about the

         22  radios, batons, memo books?

         23                 MR. MAROULIS:  The batons they're

         24  given.  The memo books, they're given the memo

         25  books.  The radios are supplied by, that's Police
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          2  Department property.  They're issued that at the

          3  beginning of their tour, and they return it at the

          4  end of their tour.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I'm sorry, I

          6  was just handed a note, so the radios they're given,

          7  and the batons and note books?

          8                 MR. MAROULIS:  They're given.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And the batons

         10  and memo books they're also given?

         11                 MR. MAROULIS:  Right, given.  A

         12  specialized unit, such as the bicycles, which we

         13  have increased dramatically in the last couple of

         14  years, is a uniform which they would have to

         15  purchase out- of- pocket.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Before I finish

         17  up, I just want to introduce PS 42 from Staten

         18  Island who have joined us, welcome.  Directly below

         19  you is Staten Island Council Member Jimmy Oddo

         20  waving, and we're clapping for him too apparently.

         21  There he is.

         22                 I just want to tell you what's going

         23  on here.  This is the Public Safety Committee of the

         24  City Council.  We have many committees for different

         25  topics, and this committee is charged with oversight
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          2  of the Police Department.  So we have hearings in

          3  which your elected representatives sit here and ask

          4  the questions that hopefully you want us to ask of

          5  the Police Department.

          6                 Today's hearing is about the

          7  auxiliary police. That's a group of people who

          8  volunteer to help the police.  You can all do that

          9  when you're 17 years old, and hopefully if you're

         10  under, I think, 60, maybe one or two might not fit

         11  in there, so that's what we're doing, and if you

         12  have any questions, send them down, maybe we'll ask,

         13  okay?  Thanks for coming by.

         14                 MR. MAROULIS:  Excuse me, there's one

         15  other item, a very important item was the bullet

         16  resistant vest.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We were getting

         18  there, don't worry.  Let's leave that aside for the

         19  moment.  Obviously, we're not thrilled to hear that

         20  our auxiliary officers have to buy their own bike

         21  uniforms and their own bicycles.  Is that something

         22  that we're looking to change that?

         23                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Yes, the bicycles

         24  shirts they get. The Committee is reviewing the

         25  expenses of being a police officer, the out- of-

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  pocket cost and looking at the initial $188

          3  investment, as well as the $250 annual uniform

          4  allowance that they receive. Obviously, we would

          5  support improvement in that area, and I believe

          6  that's the way we'll be going within the Committee.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And the radios

          8  that you're giving them, are those actual police

          9  radios?

         10                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Are they

         12  retired police radios?

         13                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  No, no, they're

         14  regular police radios.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I sent a letter

         16  to Ray Kelly, just so people don't think the Council

         17  is a Johnny- Come- Lately to this issue, in 2004 in

         18  which I was working with the Auxiliary Police

         19  Department to request better equipment and better

         20  training for our Auxiliary Police Department.

         21                 One of the things that I asked about

         22  back then was vehicles for auxiliary police.  You

         23  mentioned that each precinct has a vehicle.  By the

         24  way, I found out that may actually not be the case.

         25  I want to ask you about that.  Let's start out with
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          2  where do these vehicles come from?  How does the

          3  auxiliary police get a vehicle?

          4                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Generally, police

          5  vehicles are assigned from the general fleet as

          6  vehicles that are remodeled at the Used Better

          7  Patrol Force.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So you would

          9  say assigned from the general fleet.

         10                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  They're Police

         11  Department vehicles.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Police

         13  Department vehicles. Aren't these vehicles that the

         14  actual Police Department is no longer going to be

         15  using?  They're then assigned to the auxiliary?

         16                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  As the fleet is

         17  turned over, yes. These are vehicles that are

         18  replaced at the local precincts with patrol force,

         19  and then they're upgraded and turned over to

         20  auxiliary use.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now how is that

         22  decision made? Because not every vehicle that gets

         23  retired from the Police Department goes to the

         24  auxiliary.  They go to auction.  So how do you

         25  decide which ones go to auction, and which ones go
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          2  to the auxiliary police?

          3                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Our Motor Transport

          4  Division manages the entire fleet, so those

          5  decisions are made based on the entire fleet.

          6  Again, an area that I have asked our Committee and

          7  our subcommittee on uniforms and equipment to

          8  specifically look at because I look forward to some

          9  improvements in how we manage the auxiliary fleet.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So do we, and

         11  so does your auxiliary department.  I'm informed

         12  right now that there are at least 15 commands that

         13  don't actually have a functioning auxiliary vehicle,

         14  is that true?

         15                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  I'm not sure if

         16  there are 15 currently, but there are times, yes,

         17  when vehicles go down.  It takes time to replace

         18  them or to get someone else on patrol.

         19                 If I may just, because it comes to

         20  mind here, that the focus on vehicles, as important

         21  as it is because vehicles do serve an important part

         22  of the program, I always remind myself that the

         23  auxiliary program is a volunteer service of

         24  uniformed foot patrols.  So I know that there's

         25  always a tendency to want to go beyond that, to go
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          2  beyond the mission of the program or the

          3  description, and so that, for example, if, on its

          4  own merits, certainly everyone would want a lot of

          5  vehicles assigned.  We want to make sure that the

          6  vehicles are assigned as needed, which is usually

          7  physical transportation or more supervisory.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  As you said,

          9  that's something you're going to be looking at right

         10  now?

         11                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Absolutely.  Again,

         12  I've been involved 38 years with the New York City

         13  Police Department, and throughout those years as

         14  long as I can remember I've been involved with

         15  auxiliary police officers.  Back when I was a police

         16  officer, as a Precinct Commander, Borough Commander,

         17  and I find no more sincere, dedicated people who do

         18  this, as has been mentioned before, for no salary,

         19  for many, many years, so that I very strongly

         20  support much of what we discuss here today.

         21                 One thing I can certainly guarantee

         22  you that we have one of our staff members taking

         23  copious notes, as well as those written, so that our

         24  Committee will look at every single comment made

         25  today, certainly input from others.  I have even
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          2  asked our auxiliary chiefs to contribute their

          3  experience through everything that we look at

          4  because I do believe there's room for improvement. I

          5  think they deserve it, and I think we owe it to

          6  them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You just took

          8  our speech away from us.  We're all on the same page

          9  then.

         10                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  We are.  It's very

         11  rewarding to me, and certainly, I'm so glad that the

         12  auxiliary chiefs are here to hear this because so

         13  often that message doesn't come across, the support

         14  that they deserve and that we owe them, and that we

         15  provide them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Let us talk

         17  about this Committee then for a second.  Who is it

         18  made up of, and when do you expect it to actually

         19  come back with its findings?

         20                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  As mentioned in my

         21  comments, we'll be having a report to the Police

         22  Commissioner by June.  There was an awful lot to

         23  look at.

         24                 If you consider the auxiliary program

         25  is basically a small Police Department, and so that
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          2  as a Police Department they are affected by a range

          3  of issues, deployments, supervision, as I mentioned,

          4  selection training, all that that applies to a small

          5  Police Department.  Therefore, the Committee, have

          6  already broken it down to subcommittees that would

          7  look at the specific items that we're concerned

          8  with, but included in this committee is the highest

          9  level of our NYPD.

         10                 As I had mentioned, Deputy

         11  Commissioners of Training, because that is a very

         12  important function of the program, Deputy

         13  Commissioners of Training and Strategic Initiatives,

         14  the Chiefs, that's the Bureau Chiefs of Personnel,

         15  Housing and Community Affairs, all having some

         16  impact on the program.  The Borough Commanders, of

         17  course.  We selected two experienced Patrol Borough

         18  Commanders, Commanding Officer Patrol Borough

         19  Manhattan North and Commanding Officer of Patrol

         20  Borough Brooklyn South, who participate.  Commanding

         21  officer of the Auxiliary Police Section, Inspector

         22  Maroulis, and included the President of the

         23  Auxiliary Benevolent Association.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I have no

         25  problems with that make up.  It sounds great, but
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          2  other than the Presidents of the Auxiliaries, who

          3  we've been working closely with also, is there any

          4  mechanism for input for the auxiliary on the street?

          5                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Absolutely.  I have

          6  directed the Committee, as well as all their

          7  subcommittees, to include representatives of the

          8  auxiliaries at all levels, from police officer

          9  through the ranks on up, including some of our

         10  chiefs.

         11                 In addition, I have conducted

         12  separate committee meetings with our executive level

         13  auxiliary force, the chiefs. We've done separately

         14  and gained from their experience, but every

         15  subcommittee will include auxiliary police officers

         16  at each level.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I've got a

         18  bunch more questions obviously about vests and death

         19  benefits and all sorts of things that we've been

         20  discussing, but I know that Council Member Gentile

         21  has to leave, so Council Member Addabbo has been

         22  gracious enough to seed his time, and I will end my

         23  questioning for now to go to Council Member Gentile.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman, and thank you all for being here
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          2  today.  Chairman Vallone actually covered some of

          3  the areas that I was interested in covering,

          4  particularly with the automobiles that their

          5  auxiliaries use.

          6                 We all know that the dimensions of

          7  precincts are miles long, and if we really want

          8  those auxiliaries out there helping us, we need to

          9  have them to get around, so I would differ in your

         10  perception of that being something discretionary or

         11  additional.  I would see it as more central to the

         12  role of the auxiliary.

         13                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  I don't know if I

         14  misspoke in that area, but, no, I agree with you

         15  certainly.  Vehicles are a great component for both,

         16  again, as I mentioned, transportation, just

         17  coordination and supervision.  I only remind us that

         18  the bulk of the auxiliary force is not first

         19  responders.  They are designed for uniformed foot

         20  patrols, so it's not like we would look forward to

         21  an entire fleet of auxiliary vehicles.  However, I

         22  recognize the importance of that item certainly, and

         23  I support some of your comments and something that,

         24  again, our equipment committee needs to look at very

         25  directly.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Chief, as

          3  whatever's happened up to now with auxiliary

          4  automobiles and vans has not been good because every

          5  year since I've been an elected official, and this

          6  is my 10th year, one precinct or another will always

          7  come to me and ask me if I could get them a car for

          8  their auxiliary.  So whatever is happening in the

          9  internal structure of the NYPD to get the cars to

         10  the auxiliary is not happening fast enough because

         11  the car I got one of the precincts two years ago is

         12  now dead, and they need another car.  And they're

         13  looking to me again, or looking to the other elected

         14  officials to get them those cars.

         15                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  No, I agree

         16  wholeheartedly.  One thing I will admit that there's

         17  competition internally for equipment and resources

         18  extends to auxiliary police programs.

         19                 I know over the years certain units

         20  or certain auxiliary police units in the precincts

         21  have made efforts to support that by looking for

         22  donated vehicles or other resources. So that has

         23  happened, and perhaps that's how you get the calls

         24  to support them with vehicles.  But certainly I

         25  believe that we should be managing that within our

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  system, and we're going to be looking at that very

          3  directly.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I appreciate

          5  that because that is something.  It's not a case

          6  that we don't want to help, but we think that the

          7  NYPD should be doing more for the auxiliaries in

          8  that area.

          9                 Auxiliaries have been a great

         10  assistance to me in my precincts that I cover in

         11  southwest Brooklyn.  Chief Christo knows how often I

         12  ask for the assistance of auxiliaries in the

         13  different events that I have, but given what you

         14  said in terms of their training and their role as

         15  not being first responders, I'm wondering how do

         16  they interact now with the emergence of these

         17  community emergency response teams, the CERT teams?

         18  How do the two interact, and what roles do they play

         19  when they're called to a scene?

         20                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  As you're very

         21  familiar, the CERT teams have developed a momentum,

         22  especially after September 11th attacks.  As it

         23  turns out, our auxiliary police force is a fertile

         24  ground to support such a concept.  In fact,

         25  Inspector Maroulis has been at the forefront as an
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          2  instructor and in liaison with the federal agencies

          3  and state agencies in the CERT program.  If you

          4  would like to just go there a little bit, I can have

          5  Inspector Maroulis talk about that CERT program as a

          6  separate item.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Well, we

          8  know about the CERT.  I'm just curious, do

          9  auxiliaries get similar training to the CERT

         10  training?  And when they're on the scene together,

         11  how do they interact with each other?

         12                 MR. MAROULIS:  I sit with OEM.  I

         13  have a liaison with the Office of Emergency

         14  Management CERT Coordination, and what I do is I

         15  have staff people, supervisors and police officers

         16  that actually do some of the training.  We integrate

         17  with them and do some of the training of the

         18  community residents in the urban environment,

         19  traffic control, et cetera.  We get involved with

         20  them.

         21                 As far as the actual at the scene of

         22  an emergency, auxiliary police are a part of the

         23  NYPD, whereas CERT is part of the OEM.  We do try to

         24  work with them.  We had mobilization drills. We had

         25  the trifecter (phonetic).  We had at Shea Stadium at
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          2  Port Authority they had a mock plane crash, so we do

          3  work with them and liaison with them, but it's a

          4  separate entity so to speak.  We're under a command

          5  structure.  We work for the police, whereas a CERT

          6  is under an OEM, but if there's an emergency and

          7  like the CEMS, Citywide Emergency Management System,

          8  we're part of the structure, the auxiliary police,

          9  in terms of the uniform patrol force.  So we try to

         10  work with them.  I know in Brooklyn they're very

         11  active.

         12                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  As a note, when we

         13  had the black out in Queens, I happened to be there,

         14  and this is exactly how it rolled out in that

         15  setting up the incident command and the different

         16  entities.  The CERT teams were there, and the

         17  supervisor came right over to our command post to

         18  coordinate with the OEM personnel, so they were a

         19  functioning part, but, again, as Inspector Maroulis

         20  says, the auxiliary police force is an NYPD

         21  component.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  So, in

         23  short, you have not seen any overlapping or conflict

         24  with auxiliaries and CERT on a particular scene?

         25                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  I've not
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          2  experienced that.  If it happens, certainly that can

          3  be easily managed and corrected under the incident

          4  command structure at any incident.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I would love

          6  to stay.  I have to go to another event, and I know

          7  my colleague, Councilman Addabbo has allowed me to

          8  go first, so I'm going to turn it back to the Chair,

          9  but I want to thank you and certainly thank our

         10  auxiliary.  The two precincts that I cover, the 68

         11  and the 62 Precinct in southwest Brooklyn, I don't

         12  know what we'd do without the auxiliary on a day-

         13  to- day basis, but the biggest cry I hear from them

         14  is equipment, equipment, equipment, including the

         15  automobiles, and that's my plea to you today.

         16                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Accepted.  Thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you,

         19  Council Member, and I couldn't agree more when it

         20  comes to vehicles.  You're correct where they're

         21  supposed to be essentially foot patrols.  However,

         22  they do need to get to the locations that they're so

         23  often at. Just the other night I was at a Golden

         24  Gloves in my district where a potential brawl broke

         25  out, or maybe it was about to break out, but because
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          2  we had five or six auxiliary officers there, it was

          3  a huge help.  They need to get there.  We don't

          4  expect them to walk to the location.

          5                 I think that making sure that they're

          6  afforded an opportunity at these vehicles before

          7  they're auctioned off or given to movie companies or

          8  whatever we do with them, would make a great deal of

          9  sense.  In fact, that was the primary motivation

         10  behind my communication with Ray Kelly two years

         11  ago, which apparently did help and did increase the

         12  supply of cars for awhile, which then again fell off

         13  as other priorities came to the forefront.  Again, I

         14  want to reiterate what Council Member Gentile said.

         15  Again, I have more questions, but let me go to

         16  Council Member Addabbo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you

         18  very much, Mr. Chair.  I want to thank you and the

         19  Committee for the work that you have done on this

         20  issue.  Thank you very much for leading the cause.

         21  To our panel chief, and to all the members, thank

         22  you very much for your time and testimony here today

         23  and for your efforts as well, for the volunteers and

         24  for the sake and safety of others, thank you, and I

         25  want to thank the efforts of the Review Committee. I
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          2  am hopeful that it effects some positive change in

          3  the program, so I wish you luck and again, I thank

          4  the efforts of the Review Committee.

          5                 Chief, on page two of your testimony

          6  you mention the importance of recruitment and

          7  recruitment drives.  In light of the tragedy of

          8  March 14th, is it too early to tell how this might

          9  have a negative effect on recruitment?  And if it

         10  might, what new incentives or new initiatives may be

         11  taking place to hopefully increase recruitment?

         12                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  I will admit I'm

         13  somewhat early, but I will also say that in my

         14  individual conversations with some precinct

         15  auxiliary personnel, they have, in fact, revealed to

         16  me that there has been more interest shown, more

         17  telephone calls, more questions about the program.

         18  If there's something to be gained from such a

         19  tragedy, of course, is highlighting the program

         20  itself, so I believe we are starting to not lose

         21  interest in the program. In fact, it becomes more

         22  knowledgeable out in the communities, and I think

         23  we're getting a lot more questions on it.          In

         24  reference to what we will be doing, again, one

         25  subcommittee is dealing specifically with the issue
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          2  of recruitment.  The variety of issues have already

          3  been put on the table, including modernizing the

          4  better use of technology, the use of the internet,

          5  and so forth.  All of those will be looked at by the

          6  Committee, and it will be included.  Again, I look

          7  forward to some serious improvements in that area as

          8  well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  If a

         10  positive can come out of this tragedy, and these two

         11  lives have not been lost in vain, then if it does

         12  mean increased recruitment, I think that would be

         13  obviously a good thing, so I look forward to working

         14  with you on that.

         15                 Let me take a moment to jump on the

         16  bandwagon as far as vehicles and equipment is

         17  concerned, and let me echo the sentiments of my

         18  colleagues.  I too have been inundated with requests

         19  from my precincts and their inquiries as far as

         20  equipment and, of course, vehicles would be more

         21  helpful.  If I may, Chief, question you on the

         22  bicycles.  You mentioned that that is an out of-

         23  pocket expense.  What is the expense?  How much does

         24  a bicycle cost?

         25                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  The bicycle itself
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          2  or the equipment is not the expense, simply the

          3  different uniform.  The bicycle uniform is slightly

          4  modified uniform to provide for safety for riding a

          5  bicycle.  The pants are different, and so forth.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  To clarify,

          7  if an auxiliary officer wanted a bicycle to again

          8  patrol the area, would he have to purchase that

          9  bicycle himself?

         10                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  No.  These are

         11  vehicles considered similar to the vehicles.  Each

         12  of the auxiliary units has a certain number of

         13  bicycles assigned.  Each precinct has a certain

         14  number of bicycles assigned, so, no, they're

         15  available.  They are simply used for the moment

         16  while they go out on patrol and then returned

         17  obviously.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  So these are

         19  the same bicycles that the NYPD officers would use

         20  in the precinct?

         21                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  They don't

         23  have to purchase their own, correct?

         24                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  No, they don't

         25  purchase bicycles.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Chief, thank

          3  you very much. Again, I appreciate your efforts.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you for

          6  clarifying that, Council Member.  I was under the

          7  same misconception.  Let me ask you a tough

          8  question, but it's the one that has been most often

          9  posed to myself since the tragedy.  The wearing of

         10  the uniform, the visibility of auxiliaries in

         11  uniform is perhaps the primary advantage.  However,

         12  it also brings the greatest amount of risk, whereas

         13  I personally believe that the benefit outweighs the

         14  risk, others may not.  I think the auxiliary

         15  actually believes that the benefit outweighs the

         16  risk, and that's why they volunteer. However, does

         17  the Police Department have a position on the wearing

         18  of an actual uniform, which so closely resembles an

         19  NYPD uniform?

         20                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Well, obviously,

         21  our position now is our procedure.  They do wear a

         22  uniform that is similar with the exception of the

         23  shield and the patch, so that's the current process.

         24

         25                 Again, another area that our
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          2  committee will need to take a very close look at, I

          3  have asked them, and they have already reported

          4  reaching out to other similar programs because we're

          5  not unique in that sense.  Throughout the country

          6  what we find, of course, is such a variety of

          7  concepts out there, beginning with perhaps a

          8  different color uniform, and beginning with the

          9  issue of weapons, or no weapons, going to areas of

         10  equipment and authority of different auxiliary

         11  police departments throughout the country.         So

         12  we will be certainly incorporating all of that into

         13  this study.  The wearing of the uniform, as you

         14  said, Mr. Chairman, is a sensitive issue for

         15  auxiliary officers.  If I may, I believe across the

         16  board they certainly believe that the concept exists

         17  because the uniform provides that visibility in the

         18  community that appeals to me, as you mentioned, we

         19  need to weigh that against the fact that to any

         20  average person out there, including a bad guy,

         21  there's no difference between an auxiliary officer

         22  and a police officer on patrol.  So we will be

         23  looking very, very seriously at the issue.  I

         24  mention training because it is important.  I

         25  mentioned equipment and vehicles, yes, but this item

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  is especially sensitive, so I have sat down on the

          3  side with that subcommittee and the committee

          4  chairperson just to emphasize the importance of how

          5  we look at this matter.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I agree with

          7  you.  I think it's very important to look at that in

          8  the context of everything else you're looking at,

          9  but in my conversations with these brave young men

         10  and women, they want to be in the uniform.

         11                 I believe it's eight auxiliary

         12  officers that have been killed in the line of duty,

         13  at least that's what published reports say.  Do you

         14  have a number on that?  How many auxiliaries have

         15  been injured in the line of duty that you know of?

         16                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  As far as injuries

         17  go, I mean, obviously, there are injuries.  Overall,

         18  I can say that they are minimal in number.  Several

         19  throughout the year for a variety of reasons.  Not

         20  many rise to the level of any serious physical

         21  injury.

         22                 The incidents, at least as I have

         23  them, are those of the Auxiliary Sergeant Freed

         24  (phonetic) in 1975 in Central Park Precinct where an

         25  emotionally disturbed person assaulted, in fact,
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          2  took his night stick and with it beat him, and

          3  Sergeant Freed eventually died from his injuries.

          4  So Central Park in 1975, and another on- duty

          5  incident involving one of our highway officers,

          6  Auxiliary Sergeant Fayd (phonetic) in 1989.  While

          7  stopped to investigate an abandoned auto on the New

          8  England Thruway, was struck by a car and he passed

          9  away.

         10                 I know there are two other incidents

         11  that are often referred to, but, in fact, they are

         12  off duty, not directly related to the programs or

         13  the duties of an auxiliary officer.  That's the case

         14  in 1992 of Auxiliary Police Officer Rosario in the

         15  46 Precinct, off duty in civilian clothes was shot

         16  by a robbery suspect, and Auxiliary Police Officer

         17  Clark in the 52 Precinct in 1993, again, off duty in

         18  civilian clothes at his place of business was

         19  killed.  He died from a single gunshot wound.  So

         20  those are the incidents that I have as two line of

         21  duty, two deaths, but not while on duty.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So a total of

         23  four then is what you have?

         24                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  I'm sorry, it was

         25  Auxiliary Sergeant Collin (phonetic) and Auxiliary
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          2  Sergeant Fayd in the highway incident with two

          3  officers killed there in the accident.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So the total is

          5  how many?

          6                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  So Sergeant Freed,

          7  Sergeant Collin, Sergeant Fayd, three actually

          8  killed while working in uniform in the line of duty.

          9

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  With the

         11  additional two just recently that's five?

         12                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  I'm sorry, yes, of

         13  course, the recent incidents.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So it's five.

         15  And have there been any serious injuries that we

         16  should be aware of that did not result in deaths?

         17                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  I'm not aware of

         18  any serious injuries.  Angelo, do you have any?

         19                 MR. MAROULIS:  No, Mr. Chairman, I

         20  review the workman's compensation case.  We run

         21  anywhere from eight to twelve workman's comp. cases

         22  a year.  Of that, usually we get about two assaults

         23  we run a year, and they're minor, usually refused

         24  medical aid at the scene or going to the hospital

         25  and treated and released. The others are usually
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          2  illnesses or minor car accidents.  We really haven't

          3  had anything to my knowledge is serious other than

          4  those incidents.  You have three line of duty

          5  officers, and then the two, Marshalik and Pekearo is

          6  five line of duty actually in uniform working,

          7  killed by actions.  The other two were off duty, so

          8  there's seven actually.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So you said

         10  about eight to twelve workman's comp. cases a year?

         11                 MR. MAROULIS:  Cases a year.  That

         12  includes illnesses, minor accidents, injuries, and

         13  of those, usually we get two assaults.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  What type of

         15  workman comp. benefits are they eligible for?

         16                 MR. MAROULIS:  Well, they get medical

         17  coverage. They get loss of wages.  That would be it,

         18  you know, a funeral expenses of somebody passes

         19  away.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  They get that

         21  from their regular job, not from the Police

         22  Department?

         23                 MR. MAROULIS:  No, they get

         24  compensated through workman's comp., but it may be

         25  it's worked out.  I'm not 100 percent sure on that.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  They

          3  get workers' comp. through their position as an

          4  auxiliary police officer.  The Administrative Code

          5  has a provision in there which makes them employees

          6  for this purpose under the workers' comp. law, so

          7  they get workers' comp. benefits for medical, but

          8  because they don't have a salary from us, the

          9  workers' comp. law provides that their wages are

         10  computed on the normal wages they make in their

         11  regular, full- time employment adjusted.  So because

         12  everybody acknowledges that this is a volunteer

         13  force, but if they cannot work, they can't work at

         14  their regular job, so that's how the wages are

         15  computed for purpose of computing benefits.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I see, thank

         17  you.  Regarding death benefits, you touched upon it

         18  on page four of your testimony. You did more than

         19  touch upon it, you went into detail.  As Council

         20  Member Fidler said, we have a bill in, which would

         21  mandate this, which we are right now trying to

         22  determine whether or not that's possible.  But you

         23  say that the Public Safety Officers Benefit Act

         24  provides for the payment of $295,000 to eligible

         25  survivors of public safety officers.  I guess it was
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          2  under that law that the Mayor paid the benefits he

          3  did for the most recent tragedy.  Does this law

          4  mandate payments, or simply allow payments?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Mr.

          6  Chairman, those are two separate laws.  The Mayor's

          7  payment was made under an Administrative Code

          8  section.  Basically, a Good Samaritan award, and

          9  that's the $66,000 payment that's within the Mayor's

         10  discretion.  The $295,000 payment would be available

         11  under federal legislation.  It's a federal benefit

         12  program intended to cover losses suffered by

         13  families of police officers or peace officers who

         14  are killed in the line of duty.

         15                 But the definition of public safety

         16  officer is the question, and I believe that

         17  certainly the Mayor's Office and our own employee

         18  relations section is working with the families to

         19  apply for those benefits.  A reading of law, to me,

         20  certainly I'm not expert in this, but I believe that

         21  auxiliary police could be covered under the

         22  definition of public safety officer in the federal

         23  law, but that is something that's being worked on

         24  right now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Since it's a
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          2  federal law, has that happened anywhere in the

          3  country before that an auxiliary has been covered

          4  under that law?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  I'm

          6  sure, I don't know whether they have or not.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And without

          8  that law though, there's nothing citywide to provide

          9  any benefits to the family other than the

         10  Administrative Code that you mentioned?  Is that

         11  just a death benefit?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         13  That's a death benefit, yes, but the workers'

         14  compensation law, again, provides a death benefit in

         15  the amount of $50,000 as part of the death benefit,

         16  and then also the workers' compensation law provides

         17  for funeral expenses to be paid according to a

         18  schedule, and that applies.  Then if the person is

         19  killed or suffers injury because of a crime, then

         20  there may be benefits available under the Crime

         21  Victims Compensation Board's guidelines, which does

         22  provide for reimbursement of burial expenses and

         23  loss of wages, things like that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How does what

         25  you just described differ from an actual police
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          2  officer who might die in the line of duty?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  I

          4  don't know enough about what the pension benefit is

          5  to the surviving family.  I'm sure that the police

          6  officer benefit is much enhanced, but the police

          7  officer family would also be able to apply for the

          8  federal benefit.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  What about the

         10  death benefit under the Administrative Code that the

         11  Mayor paid in this regard, how does that compare?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         13  That's a different section.  I think it's 3- 405 for

         14  Good Samaritans, but there are other sections,

         15  similar sections, in the Administrative Code where

         16  the Mayor can make a discretionary award for peace

         17  officers, and I believe police officers, but I can

         18  get back to you on that in detail.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I know you're

         20  working on it because we are also regarding Council

         21  Member Fidler's bill and whether we are allowed to

         22  mandate or not mandate, and that may be something

         23  that's better discussed with the Office of Labor

         24  Relations than the Police Department, but clearly,

         25  we're in favor of ensuring that any person who dies
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          2  serving the public by keeping our streets safe in a

          3  public safety capacity, should at a bare minimum

          4  have their funeral expenses covered.  We commend the

          5  Mayor for doing everything that he possibly could in

          6  this regard and the Police Department.  Again, we

          7  have no quarrels, we're just all here looking at

          8  what we can do to improve, what we can do to learn

          9  from a tragedy.

         10                 Specifically regarding training, what

         11  is an auxiliary trained to do when he or she

         12  observes a violent crime in progress?

         13                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Their main focus is

         14  to patrol, observe and report, so that they're

         15  trained to when they see something that maybe

         16  requires police attention, to call for assistance

         17  and have police officers respond.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well, I would

         19  believe that their training must go further than

         20  that because not every violent crime is so neatly

         21  contained.  Some continue over a certain period of

         22  time.  Others result in a suspect getting in a car

         23  in fleeing. What are they trained to do in that

         24  situation?

         25                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Training also
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          2  includes obviously providing description, providing

          3  information.  It certainly includes a certain amount

          4  of self defense because at times they may not be in

          5  a position to act, calling for assistance, so they

          6  may have to defend themselves.  So the training

          7  ranges from tactics to procedural, to safety, a

          8  range of issues covered by training in general.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Perhaps you

         10  can't actually answer the question.  If you can't,

         11  that's fine, but this is something that must occur

         12  often in an auxiliary's career.  If they see a

         13  crime, other than just reporting it like your

         14  average citizen would, if the suspect of this crime

         15  leaves the location, are they trained to tail that

         16  subject from a distance?  Are they told to take no

         17  action?  What are they trained to do?

         18                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  They are asked to

         19  observe, try to maintain some visual contact as they

         20  call for assistance.  But they're not trained to

         21  physically engage.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I am very

         23  anxious to hear from the Head of the Auxiliary

         24  Officers Union, and you have, as I said, answered

         25  many of our questions, and most of our concerns you
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          2  said you were addressing.  Rather than continue to

          3  state that we hope you look into them, we know you

          4  are.  We have full faith in this new committee and

          5  yourselves and everyone involved to make the changes

          6  you deem necessary.  We will hopefully be notified

          7  as soon as that committee does come back with some

          8  recommendations so that we can take a look and have

          9  a second hearing, if necessary, hopefully just have

         10  a giant celebration without a second hearing, but

         11  we'll see.

         12                 Again, we thank you for your efforts

         13  and especially today the efforts of our volunteers,

         14  who, as I've said before, volunteer their time to

         15  keep us safe and occasionally volunteer their lives,

         16  and it's something we owe a huge debt of gratitude

         17  for, and as Chair of Public Safety, that's what I'm

         18  expressing to you as leaders of these brave young

         19  men and women, so thank you all for the work you do

         20  every day.  We look forward to working with you on

         21  these issues in the future.

         22                 CHIEF ESTAVILLO:  Thank you very

         23  much, Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We'll next be

         25  hearing from John Hyland, the President of the
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          2  Auxiliary Police Benevolent Police Association.

          3  Thank you, Mr. Hyland, for coming down today and for

          4  all your help prior today in preparing for this

          5  Hearing. Please introduce who's on the panel with

          6  you and the floor is yours.

          7                 MR. HYLAND:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8    I would like to introduce my Vice- President,

          9  Anthony Jones, who works at the 81 Precinct, Second

         10  Vice- President is Jeffrey Lawn (phonetic) who works

         11  in Headquarters, and my Director of Government

         12  Affairs is Louis Sterli (phonetic), who works in the

         13  First Precinct.

         14                 I'd like to thank Chair Vallone and

         15  all the Members of the Public Safety Committee for

         16  the opportunity to comment today and to express the

         17  appreciation of the members of the Auxiliary Police

         18  Benevolent Association to the Committee for turning

         19  its attention to the contributions of the needs of

         20  the Auxiliary Police Officers of all ranks.  I will

         21  be very brief.

         22                 I am sure the Committee Members are

         23  aware that Police Commissioner Raymond Kelly has

         24  appointed a special Auxiliary Police Review

         25  Committee to examine issues of recruitment and
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          2  selection, training, equipment, duties and

          3  responsibilities, deployment and supervision of

          4  auxiliary police officers.  Having been appointed to

          5  that Committee, I will limit my comments while that

          6  body does its work, which is expected to produce a

          7  report to the Police Commissioner within

          8  approximately 60 days.

          9                 I urge the Public Safety Committee to

         10  carefully and promptly consider the contents of that

         11  report and any responsible contrasting view that may

         12  emerge, as it performs its own duties of overseeing

         13  the New York City Police Department.  While I have

         14  high hopes that the results of that review will

         15  benefit both New York City's Auxiliary Police

         16  Officers and a City they serve, I must comment on a

         17  couple of items that need to be addressed regardless

         18  of that outcome.

         19                 Quite some time ago, Council Member

         20  Lewis Fidler proposed what is now Intro 335 to

         21  extend funeral benefits to Auxiliary Police Officers

         22  who die in the performance of duty.  Just a few

         23  weeks ago that bill had 16 primary sponsors,

         24  including three members of the Public Safety

         25  Committee.  Recently, through the efforts of Council
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          2  Member Fidler and Members of the APBA staff, more

          3  members have agreed to add their names as sponsors.

          4                 I understand that with additional

          5  help of Chairman Vallone, the bill appears on the

          6  calendar for today's meeting of this Committee.

          7  Yes, we appreciate the public commitment made by

          8  Mayor Bloomberg obtaining benefits for families of

          9  the two young Auxiliary Police Officers we are

         10  currently mourning, and we are very grateful to the

         11  Police Commissioner for the recognition given to

         12  those officers and to all Auxiliary Police Officers

         13  by ordering a full Inspector's Funerals that were

         14  their due.

         15                 But it is time that the Council

         16  secure in law the funeral benefits provided by Intro

         17  335 for the families of any Auxiliary Police Officer

         18  who dies in the performance of duty in the future,

         19  though perhaps less dramatically.

         20                 I know that everyone in this chamber

         21  joins me in hopes that it will be a very long time

         22  indeed before such benefit is claimed.

         23                 We are grateful to Council Member

         24  Fidler and his original co- sponsors for introducing

         25  this measure, long before our recent tragedy made

                                                            72

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  its needs painfully obvious.  We thank members who

          3  have recently joined their ranks, which now includes

          4  a majority of the full Council, as well as a

          5  majority of this Committee and hope the measure will

          6  proceed as promptly as possible to enactment.

          7                 Many issues that affect the safety of

          8  Auxiliary Police Officers like equipment, training

          9  and supervision, will be considered in connection

         10  with the Committee appointed by the Police

         11  Commissioner, but there are others that can only be

         12  dealt with by legislation.

         13                 To add an additional measure of

         14  protection for Auxiliary Police Officers in the line

         15  of duty, I call upon this Committee to bring to the

         16  full Council a resolution supporting our efforts to

         17  make such changes in the New York State Criminal

         18  Procedure Law that would increase the penalties for

         19  any assault on an Auxiliary Police Officer in

         20  connection with the performance of duty to the same

         21  level as those of assaulting a regular police

         22  officer.  This would make the murder of an Auxiliary

         23  Police Officer a Class A felony.

         24                 Again, I look forward to the Public

         25  Safety Committee's opportunity to review the
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          2  forthcoming special report to the Commissioner, and

          3  I may well seek the attention of members of the

          4  Committee to make additional comments in connection

          5  with it. Just as important, I look forward to an

          6  ongoing dialogue between this Committee's members

          7  and the Auxiliary Police Benevolent Association on

          8  needed improvements to what, despite those needs, is

          9  already the world's finest Auxiliary Police Program.

         10    Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you,

         12  President Hyland. I know that you're hesitant to

         13  deal with any specifics while the Committee is

         14  examining many of these matters, and you sit on the

         15  Committee, so I'll be relatively brief.

         16                 You do mention death benefits and Lou

         17  Fidler's bill, and I should tell you that without

         18  even knowledge that that bill existed, Council

         19  Member Ignizio and I called for that recently, so

         20  there are at least two more people that will be

         21  supporting that measure to get you full death

         22  benefits.

         23                 What was your impression of what the

         24  Police Department said regarding the present

         25  situation of death benefits? Was there anything that
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          2  needed to be amended there or added there, I should

          3  say?

          4                 MR. HYLAND:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  You

          5  questioned about the federal death benefit.  The two

          6  auxiliary highway officers you were told about,

          7  Larry Collin and Noel (phonetic) Fayd, did receive

          8  that benefit back then.  Last year, a reserve

          9  officer from Washington, D.C. received a benefit.

         10  He was directing traffic.  He was hit and killed.

         11  His name also appears on a wall in Washington, as

         12  well as our members.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  If there's

         14  anything we can do then, and I'll direct my staff

         15  right now to write a letter in support, but to

         16  support your application, which I know Commissioner

         17  Petito said that the Police Department is helping

         18  you with to get these benefits for Marshalik and

         19  Pekearo, we stand ready to do that, so just let us

         20  know.

         21                 MR. HYLAND:  It takes approximately a

         22  year.  It's got to go through the review down in

         23  Washington, and as long as the Department is on

         24  board, which they are, it just goes as things go,

         25  and the family will get the award, and probably next
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          2  May 15th in Washington, D.C., their names will go on

          3  the walls on National Law Enforcement Officers

          4  Memorial.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  That's an honor

          6  they deserve. You discussed legislation to increase

          7  the penalties for assaulting an auxiliary police

          8  officer, which I fully support.  If there is not

          9  already a resolution in the Council, which I'm

         10  researching, I will be putting a resolution in the

         11  Council to do just that.  What is your position on

         12  the legislation that's already proposed by the

         13  Administration?  Is that sufficient, or are you

         14  looking for something else?

         15                 MR. HYLAND:  We would like to see it

         16  the same as for a regular police officer.  It just

         17  gives our people that much of an edge.  If you ride

         18  the subway, and I'm sure you do, the signs are up

         19  there.  If you're going an assault an MTA employee,

         20  you're gone for seven years.  That's a good step.

         21  If you assault a cop, you're going away for longer

         22  than that.  This is just the way it is. These people

         23  are putting on the uniform, they're going out and

         24  working.  You can't have people beating them up and

         25  killing them. It just doesn't make sense.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Absolutely.  In

          3  fact, it would increase their deterrent ability if

          4  people knew that they had special protections that

          5  were not afforded to your average citizen, which is

          6  one of the main purposes of having them out there,

          7  as a deterrent.

          8                 MR. HYLAND:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Is there

         10  anything else that you think we should be doing as a

         11  City Council right now as we await this report?  Or

         12  any other way we can be of assistance to you?

         13                 MR. HYLAND:  Well, you mentioned the

         14  vehicles. Vehicles are a big item, and, as you heard

         15  from Chief Estavillo, the vehicles are recycled into

         16  the Auxiliary Police Program.  When they need

         17  service, they're sent to the shop, but they take a

         18  second place in the shop.  It's not in and out like

         19  a regular RMP is. They take a back seat because it's

         20  not a primary vehicle, and so on, which I

         21  understand.

         22                 More vehicles would definitely help.

         23  We've spoken through the years about an allocation

         24  of 50 vehicles a year, which would turn the whole

         25  fleet over every three years.  Every time we speak
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          2  and calls are made over to Police Headquarters, the

          3  gaps are filled.  It lasts for several months, maybe

          4  a year, 18 months, and then of course it starts all

          5  over again, and we got to start all over again.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  This is

          7  something that's being addressed by the Committee,

          8  you said?

          9                 MR. HYLAND:  The Committee, yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I would look

         11  forward to that actually happening.  We'll see what

         12  happens when the report comes out.

         13                 Again, I don't want to go through

         14  specifics with you of every topic regarding vests

         15  and equipment because that's things that you're

         16  discussing with this Committee, and I don't want to

         17  jeopardize that discussion in any way, so we look

         18  forward to your Committee coming back with its

         19  report, and discussing that with you when that

         20  happens.  Again, we stand ready here to assist you

         21  in any way possible.  You heard what I said before

         22  about what you do, so I won't repeat again, but,

         23  again you have our thanks for what you do every day.

         24    Thank you all.

         25                 MR. HYLAND:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Our last panel

          3  will consist of two auxiliary officers, William

          4  Rivera and Tariq Shakur.  Thank you both for being

          5  here today and for sitting through this Hearing.  As

          6  members of the public your time will be limited to

          7  three minutes. If we need to go over a little bit

          8  more, we can allow that, if necessary.  Mr. Rivera,

          9  I know that you've been involved in this issue for

         10  awhile now, and we appreciate your assistance, and

         11  you have a report to discuss, so let's begin with

         12  you.

         13                 MR. RIVERA:  I want to thank the City

         14  Council for having me.  I wish the Chief stayed here

         15  and some of the Police Department heads because I

         16  had some serious questions about what he was talking

         17  about.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Assistant

         19  Commissioner Petito is in the back, so she will

         20  relay any of your concerns to the Police Department.

         21                 MR. RIVERA:  I just want to start off

         22  by saying that after this tragedy, a number of high

         23  ranked, educated, experienced NYPD police officers

         24  12, over 100 years of experience, got together to

         25  recommend an assembly to a committee to study
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          2  critical changes to improve the NYPD Auxiliary

          3  Police Program.

          4                 This report will illustrate current

          5  NY auxiliary police procedures, recommended changes

          6  and why, and the positive effect it will have in the

          7  future.  Unofficial report merely recommendations a

          8  lot of facts.

          9                 It is the intent of this report to

         10  influence the City of New York to help prevent

         11  injuries and deaths to auxiliary officers from lack

         12  of training, supervision and proper equipment, such

         13  as the recent tragic deaths of two auxiliary

         14  officers, Eugene Marshalik and Nicholas Pekearo, who

         15  were shot to death, execution style, in the line of

         16  duty in lower Manhattan, March 14, 2007.  I

         17  therefore have the honor of calling this report the

         18  Marshalik and Pekearo Report.

         19                 These members who got together on

         20  their own time, volunteered their own time, I call

         21  the Top Gun Auxiliaries.  This report doesn't get

         22  better than any other one.

         23                 Some issues I want to point out with

         24  this letter that the Chief wrote in regards to

         25  equipment and vehicles, the vehicle problem is a
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          2  serious issue.  Federal funding is a big issue,

          3  description of the programs and goals and

          4  recruitment.

          5                 The Chief brought up a problem of the

          6  peace officer status.  We brought up a solution to

          7  that status.  He brought up a voucher.  Our voucher

          8  is not enough for our uniforms.  Highway and

          9  specialized units have to spend a lot more money

         10  than they mention out of our own pocket.  We have to

         11  purchase our own hand cuffs and dress uniform, which

         12  I think is ridiculous.

         13                 Vehicles sometimes we don't have.

         14  Some precincts go years, months without vehicles.

         15  There's a solution for that too. There's a lot of

         16  money spent in the Police Department that's wasted.

         17  Recruitment is bad.  He mentioned the change of

         18  uniform. The uniform should stay the way it is.

         19  Little or no training, I joined in 1999.  I got a

         20  basic class.  I've never been retrained after that

         21  since 1999.  I have gotten no retraining and very

         22  little training in the beginning.

         23                 I'm not here to bash the Police

         24  Department.  We're here to work together to fix

         25  these issues, but I'd like to state the facts.
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          2  There's a lot of things that haven't been brought

          3  up. These officers who got together, we're starting

          4  an association amongst the supervisors to help in

          5  the future.  This report that I brought, I have the

          6  Council Members read it in full.  I know that

          7  Vallone has a copy.  Hopefully, we can meet before

          8  the Commissioner's Committee is out just as a

          9  parallel

         10                 A lot of the issues I bring up the

         11  Committee will bring up.  Hopefully, at the end of

         12  the day, we come to a solution, but I have to cover

         13  myself because if the Police Department doesn't

         14  bring up some of these issues that have to be

         15  brought up, then hopefully the City Council can help

         16  address them.  I know my time has run.  That's all I

         17  have to say for now.

         18                 MR. SHAKUR:  I'd like to thank the

         19  Council for allowing us to speak our minds as far as

         20  the tragic events of the two deaths of the auxiliary

         21  officers.  Me, myself, I'm an auxiliary officer as

         22  well.  I feel we definitely need more training.  I

         23  feel we need at least two vehicles per Precinct

         24  because a lot of those vehicles that we have they

         25  break down.  Most precincts have more personnel than
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          2  others, so if, for instance, if we have X amount of

          3  officers that come in to perform their duties that

          4  particular day, we all can't fit in that one

          5  particular vehicle, so I feel by having more

          6  vehicles, that would address that concern.

          7                 Also, I feel that all the legislation

          8  that's being put forth, I definitely agree with

          9  that.  It would definitely help us, and definitely

         10  we have to increase our status on the street because

         11  a lot of times we're out there, we encounter the

         12  different things that happen day to day in the

         13  course of our duties.  I feel it would benefit both

         14  the Department as well as ourselves to allow us to

         15  be out there to further reduce crime as we've been

         16  doing. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you both,

         18  and I look forward to reading your report, Mr.

         19  Rivera, which I received today and which we will go

         20  through.

         21                 Let me ask both of you about the

         22  testimony you heard today.  There are some things we

         23  can only know by speaking to the officer on the

         24  street.  When it comes to something like your

         25  uniform allowance, how does that play out at the end
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          2  of the day? Do you get enough?  How much in addition

          3  to what they give you, do you have to spend right

          4  now?

          5                 MR. RIVERA:  Like I stated before,

          6  the allowance is not enough.  I don't know what year

          7  that was brought up about that amount, but it was a

          8  long time ago.  Like I stated before, how we

          9  officers in specialized units have to spend money on

         10  our own uniforms reaching over $1,000 purchasing our

         11  own hand cuffs and bullet proof vests, I think is

         12  absolutely outrageous.  It's a lot of things we have

         13  to purchase on our own.  It's not enough.

         14                 Like I said, there's a lot of money

         15  wasted.  Where we have to start is the quality of

         16  the auxiliary police officer. If we made these

         17  changes tomorrow, I believe half of them would fail

         18  because the officers we have now, they're not what I

         19  would say the investigation process is little to

         20  none.  The training is little to none.  There's a

         21  lot of changes, a re- vamp of the patrol guide.

         22  There's a lot of things that the Chief said, and I

         23  don't know where he's getting his information from

         24  that I have serious questions about the real amount

         25  of auxiliary officers who are in the program.
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          2                 If you're going to give people bullet

          3  proof vests, they have to be properly trained and

          4  they have to be on patrol.              One of the

          5  issues with the vehicles is ridiculous, as my

          6  precinct, just to give an example, took a very long

          7  time.  I had to speak out to a Council Member.  We

          8  have an Auxiliary Police Department that's bigger

          9  than some of the police departments in the some

         10  country.  A lower rank in the Police Department in

         11  charge of our program is absolutely unnecessary.  We

         12  need a civilian, a director, a commissioner, a

         13  chief.  As the Chief mentioned, there was a chief

         14  involved.  Thank God.  We're citizens.  We're

         15  voters. We're civilians.  I think the City Council

         16  has to play a bigger part in our supervision who

         17  would like to abide citizens us.  This director or

         18  commissioner or chief should report to the

         19  Commissioner and also to the City Council.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay, let's

         21  stick to my questions without -- I appreciate that.

         22  It's all in the report though.  Some of the things

         23  you said though, I need to get from you while you're

         24  sitting here.  You said you have not been retrained

         25  since you joined the auxiliary, is that correct?
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          2                 MR. RIVERA:  Since 1999.  Not just

          3  myself, all auxiliaries.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  I

          5  believe that that testimony was that you should

          6  receive ongoing training.

          7                 MR. RIVERA:  Recurring training every

          8  year.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Every year.

         10  Okay.  That's something that we'll be bringing up

         11  with them.  Now, you said the basic training is not

         12  enough.  They were saying that they conduct a 16-

         13  week training course, 54 hours of instruction.  Did

         14  you receive that, or is that what you saying is not

         15  enough?

         16                 MR. RIVERA:  I believe I received

         17  something like that in 1999, which nowadays in the

         18  21st century is not enough, for the real world

         19  activities in the street, is not enough.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Regarding the

         21  uniforms, you said a highway officer would spend

         22  $1,000 more than they're allowed?

         23                 MR. RIVERA:  Probably over $1,000.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  What about your

         25  average officer on the streets?  What do they spend
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          2  in excess of their allotment?

          3                 MR. RIVERA:  Well, other than just

          4  getting a long sleeved shirt and pants and a jacket

          5  and baton, you have to purchase your hand cuffs.

          6  Obviously, if you do a lot, if you go out once a

          7  week, you're going to want to purchase short sleeved

          8  for the summertime. You're going to want to purchase

          9  another long sleeved shirt, a sweater.  There's a

         10  lot of options that are optional, but sometimes

         11  necessary, especially hand cuffs.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How much does a

         13  pair of hand cuffs cost?

         14                 MR. RIVERA:  Off the top of my head,

         15  I don't know, I haven't bought one since a long

         16  time, $40 maybe?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  $40?  How about

         18  you, Tariq, do you have anything different to say

         19  regarding the cost of a uniform that you need to pay

         20  for?

         21                 MR. SHAKUR:  Definitely, I feel the

         22  vouchers is not enough because we have to purchase a

         23  variety of things, flashlight, like he mentioned,

         24  hand cuffs, radios sometimes.  If you have to get a

         25  radio holder because that's not provided by the
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          2  Department in most cases.  That's an average of at

          3  least $40 right there.  A variety of things.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Maybe this

          5  isn't true, but apparently, you receive $250 per

          6  year maintenance of the uniform every year in

          7  addition to the $188.  That doesn't cover what

          8  you're saying right now?

          9                 MR. SHAKUR:  Not at all.  It's not

         10  enough because you have to remember, they give you

         11  at least one of everything. Now if you want to

         12  patrol a lot, you're going to need at least three

         13  pairs, and the other two pairs you have to purchase

         14  out of your own pocket, which is not provided for by

         15  the Department, and it doesn't really cover in the

         16  $250 we get at the end of the year.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So what would

         18  each of you estimate that your average auxiliary

         19  needs to pay above and beyond what you're given?

         20                 MR. RIVERA:  At least $500.

         21                 MR. SHAKUR:  Yes, at least that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Well,

         23  hopefully, they'll increase it by at least $500 when

         24  they come back with their recommendations.

         25                 Like I said, I have your reports.
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          2  Everything that you were saying will be examined

          3  carefully after this, and I thank both of you for

          4  your input and look forward to working with you. You

          5  know my Committee here.  If you need to have any

          6  questions that you need addressed, you can always

          7  call Liz Dubin and Jennine, who have been so helpful

          8  in preparing this Hearing, by the way.  We thank

          9  both of you for your efforts.

         10                 MR. RIVERA:  Thank you very much.

         11                 MR. SHAKUR:  Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  With, again, my

         13  thanks to everyone who's come down today, and

         14  especially this distinguished group in the front row

         15  here, I look forward to working with all of you.

         16  Thank you for your participation, and thank you for

         17  what you do every day.  This Hearing is adjourned.

         18  I'm sorry, I forgot to welcome Helen Foster, who was

         19  Acting Chair for a short moment there also, so thank

         20  you for coming down.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 11:55 a.m.)
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